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SOCIETE GENERALE DE BANQUE - JORDANIE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2016



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Societe Generale De Banque - Jordanie
Amman- Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Societe Generale De Banque - Jordanie
(@ public shareholding company) and its subsidiary (“The Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards, are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Jordan, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter provided in that context.



We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Impairment of loans and advances is one of the most significant matters that impact the reported
results of the Group, in addition of being an area that requires a considerable amount of judgment
for determining impairment event and the measurement of impairment loss.

Judgment is applied to the inputs of the measurement process of impairment including valuation
of collateral and determining the default date, and as a result, impairment is calculated from that
date. As at 31 December 2016, the gross loans and advances amounted to JD 588,554,123
against which accumulated loan loss provision of JD 9,113,050 was recorded.

How the key audit matter was addressed in the audit
Our audit procedures included obtaining the non-performing and watch list loans schedules,
samples were selected to test impairment which included collatera! valuation and assessing the

provision required based on the date of default.

We also selected a sample from the performing loans to determine whether management had
identified all impairment events.

Disclosures of impairment of loans and advances are detailed in note 7 and note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Suspension of interest on non- performing loans

Interest is suspended after 90 days from impairment event (default date) in accordance with
Central Bank of Jordan regulations.

Judgment is applied as to determining when the default date occurred which affects the amount
of interest to be suspended.



How the key audit matter was addressed in the audit

Our audit procedures included selecting a sample from the schedules of non-performing loans
and interest in suspense, and tested suspended interest including recalculation in accordance
with CBJ regulations, and assessing the criteria used by management for determining the
impairment event.

Disclosures of interest in suspense are detailed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
Other information included in The Group’s 2016 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in The Group's 2016 Annual Report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is
responsible for the other information. The Group's 2016 Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.



Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exist. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exist, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period, and are therefore the key audit matlers. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report, unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Group maintains proper books of accounts which are in agreement with the consolidated
financial statements.

Amman — Jordan
23 February 2017



SOCIETE GENERALE DE BANQUE - JORDANIE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

ASSETS

Cash and balances at central bank
Balances at banks and financial institutions
Deposits at banks and financial institutions
Direct credit facilities - net

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Pledged financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Property and equipment - net

Intangible assets - net

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES -

Banks and financial institutions’ deposits
Customers’ deposits

Margin accounts

Loans and borrowings

Other provisions

income tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQuITY-

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE BANK'S
SHAREHOLDERS

Issued and paid in capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

General banking risk reserve

Fair value reserve - net

Retained earnings

ToTAL EQuiTY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Notes

-~ oh

[{e ] (a]e:]

10
11
12
19
13

14
15
16
il 7
18
19
19
20

21
22
22
22
23
24

2016 2015
JD JD

142,927,198 336,311,558
06,822,688 36,230,356
15,215,196 17,459,133
568,214,647 431,594,034
478,779 250,335
314,489,658 208,286,399
126,403,000 111,846,000
- 31,852,062
22,346,823 22,944 481
1,355,256 935,559
1,358,687 1,328,995
13,563,683 11,102,538

1,303,175,615

1,210,141,450

44,392,864
1,001,027,211
88,168,880
17,307,123
73,064
5,235,192
264,311
13,266,157

29,055,047
916,697,231
99,588,369
20,855,509
218,786
4,299,315
167,557
11,662,608

1,169,734,802

1,082,554,422

100,000,000 100,000,000
10,411,084 8,746,028
100,000 100,000
4,167,794 3,385,332
(53,000) 1,250
18,814,955 15,354,418
133,440,813 127,587,028

1,303,175,615

1,210,141,450

The accompanying notes from 1 to 43 represent an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements and should be read with them.



SOCIETE GENERALE DE BANQUE -~ JORDANIE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Net commission income
Net interest and commission income

Gain from foreign currencies

Gain on sale of financial assets at amortized cost

Loss on sale of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Gain on revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Dividends income from financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Other income

Gross income

Employees expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Other expenses

Impairment loss on direct credit facilities
Other provisions

Provision against seized assets

Impairment loss on financial assets at amortized
cost

Total expenses

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year

25
26

27

28

10

10

30
11,12
31

18
13

19

32

2016 2015
JD JD
55,932,433 47,790,340
(35240,224)  (29,748,472)
20,692,209 18,041,868
2,665,809 1,943 408
23,358,018 19,985,276
928,835 907,686
3,129,853 3,311,961
(64,418) .
- 2,197,696
18,750 17,000
1,915,897 1,313,269
29,286,935 27,732,888
(5,637,153) (5,015,367)
(1,222,193) (1,152,020)
(4,652,868) (4,508,157)
(648,719) (1,329,623)
(12,662) (38,711)
(444,115) (291,336)
(109,500) g
(12,727,210) ~(12,333,214)
16,559,725 15,399,674
(5,651 ,690) (5,390,448)
10,808,035 10,009,226
JD/Fils JD/Fils
0/109 0/100

The accompanying notes from 1 to 43 represent an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements and should be read with them.



SOCIETE GENERALE DE BANQUE - JORDANIE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015
JD JD
Profit for the year 10,908,035 10,009,226
Add: Other comprehensive income items which will not be
reclassified to profit and loss at subsequent periods
Change in fair value reserve, net of tax (54,250) 60,000
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,853,785 10,069,226

The accompanying notes from 1 to 43 represent an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements and should be read with them.
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SOCIETE GENERALE DE BANQUE - JORDANIE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax

Non-cash adjustments for-

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment losses on direct credit facilities

Impairment loss on financial assets at amortized cost

Gain on revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Loss from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gain from sale of financial assets at amortized cost

Losses from sale of property and equipment

Other provisions

Effect of exchange rate differences on cash and cash equivalent

Profit before changes in assets and liabilities

Changes in assets and liabilities -

{increase} in restricted balances

Decrease (increase} in deposits at banks and financial institutions

{Increase) in direct credit facilities

{Increase) in other assets

Increase in customers’ deposits

{Decrease) Increase in margin accounts

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Increase in deposit at banks and financial institutions
(with maturities over three months)

Decrease in other provisions

Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities before income

tax paid
Income tax paid
Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost

Redemption of financial assets at amortized cost

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at amortized cost

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of property and equipment

Advances on purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayment of loans and borrowings

Cash dividends

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net (decrease} increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate differences on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

19

33

2016 2015
JD JD
16,559,725 15,399,674
1,222,183 1,152,020
648,719 1,329,623
109,500 :
& (2,197,696)
64,418 :
(3,129,853) (3,311,961)
157 2,074
12,662 38,711
(672,931) (665,096)
14,814,590 11,747,349
(3,545,000) -
2,243,937 (1,349,260)
(137,269,332)  (112,879,789)
(2,461,145) (758,174)
84,329,980 309,133,490
(11,429,489) 17,019,541
1,603,549 (411,071)
> 5,000,000
(158,384) (2,200)
(51,871,294) 227,499,886
(4,648,751) (4,459,322)
(56,520,045) 223,040,564
(220,738,010)  (185,912,000)
64,834,055 43,739,805
(282,694) -
31,787,644 -
38,164,049 36,322,007
7,172 18,500
(296,746) (411,513)
(722,803) (1,395,955)
(32,012) (89,781)
(87,279,345)  (107,728,937)
4,686,109 16,414,435
(8,234,495) (14,521,337)
(5,000,000 (4,000,000)
(8,548,386) (2,106,902)
(152,347,776) 113,204,725
672,931 665,096
348,486,867 234,617,046
196,812,022 348,486,867

The accompanying notes from 1 to 43 represent an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements and should be read with them.



SOCIETE GENERALE DE BANQUE - JORDANIE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2016

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Bank was established as a financial real estate investment company on 22 April 1965 in
accordance with Jordanian Companies Law No (55), and it was transferred to investment bank
during 1993 in accordance with companies law No. (1) for the year of 1989.

The Bank provides its banking services through its 17 branches located in the Kingdom of Jordan.
The bank has no branches outside the Kingdom.

As at 31 December 2016, the paid in capital amounted to 100,000,000 each having a par value of
JD 1 (2015: JD 100,000,000).

The Bank's shares are listed on the Amman Stock Exchange.
The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Bank's Board of Directors

in their meeting no. (01/2017) held on 23 February 2017, and they are subject to the approval of
central Bank and General Assembly of shareholders.

(2-1) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and its interpretations
(IFRICs) as issued by the Internal and Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and in conformity with
the applicable laws and regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan.

The consoclidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income which are presented at fair
value as of the date of the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements have been presented in Jordanian Dinars (JD) which is the functional
currency of the Bank.

{2-2) Chanages in accounting policies:

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with
those used in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 except for the followings:



Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27 and IFRS 1)

In August 2014, the IASB amended IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements which restore the
option for entities, in the separate financial statements, to account for investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures using the equity method as described in 1AS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures. A consequential amendment was also made to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards. The amendment to IFRS 1 allows a first-
time adopter accounting for investments in the separate financial statements using the equity
method, to apply the IFRS 1 exemption for past business combinations to the acquisition of the
investment,

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Amendments to IAS 1
The amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements related to:

o Materiality

* Disaggregation and subtotals

* Notes structure

* Disclosure of accounting policies

» Presentation of items of other comprehensive income (OCI) arising from equity accounted
investments

Investment entities (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)
The amendments address the issues arising in practice in the application of the investment
entities consolidation exception and clarify that:

» The exemption from presenting consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity
that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the investment entity measures all of its
subsidiaries at fair value.

* Subsidiary that is not an investment entity itself and provides support services to the
investment entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured
at fair value.

s Application of the equity method by a non-investment entity that has an interest in an
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity: The amendments to IAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures allow the investor, when applying the equity method, to
retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to
its interests in subsidiaries.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortization

The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business {of which the asset is part) rather
than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used
in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets.

e



Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business, must
apply the relevant IFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments also
clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an
additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope
exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the
parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same
ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation.

The implementation of the new amendments did not have impact on the Bank's financial position
or performance and became effective for annual periods which started from 1 January 2016.

{2-3) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiary (“The Group”) control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from it's involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the subsidiary. Inter-company balances and transactions are eliminated between
the bank and the subsidiary:

Societe Generale Brokerage Company {"The Subsidiary”), which is fully owned by the Bank with
paid in capital of JD 750,000 as of 31 December 2016, was established on 6 June 2006. The
Company's main objective is providing brokerage services.

The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Bank, using consistent accounting policies. If the subsidiary has a different accounting policy than
the bank, necessary adjustments will be reflected to match the bank’s accounting policies.

Consclidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.

The results of operations of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Bank gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Non- controlling interest represents the portion of equity in the subsidiaries owned by others.

If standalone financial statements are prepared for the Bank, the investment in subsidiary will be
shown at cost in the statement of financial position.

{2-4) Significant accounting policies
Seamental reporting

Business segments represent distinguishable components of the Bank that are engaged in
providing products or services that are subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segments and reported based on the reports that are used by the Bank's chief executive
decision maker.

Geographical segments are associated to products or services provided within a particular
economic environment, which are subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other economic environments.
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Direct credit facilities

Direct credit facilities are financial assets with fixed installments initially granted or acquired by the
Bank and has no market value in active markets.

Provision for impairment of direct credit facilities is recognized when there is an objective event
occurring after the initial recognition of the facility, that has a negative impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the facilities and that can be reliably estimated. The impairment is charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Interest and commission on non-performing facilities provided for customers are suspended
according to the regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan.

Loans and the related provision for impairment are written off, when collection procedures
become ineffective. The excess in the allowance of possible loan losses, if any, is transferred to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and cash recoveries of loans previously written - off
are credited to income.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Represent equity investments being held for sale in the long term.

These financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising on subsequent
measurement of these equity investments including the change in fair value arising from non-
monetary assets in foreign currencies are recognized in other comprehensive income in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. The gain or loss on disposal of the asset is
reclassified from fair value through other comprehensive income reserve directly to retained
earnings and not through the consolidated income statement.

These financial assets are not subject to impairment testing.

Dividend income is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets which do not meet the business model for financial assets at amortized cost,
and are purchased with the aim of resale in the near future in order to generate profit from the
short-term market prices fluctuation or the trading profit margins.

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value, unless
if the Bank classified the financial investments as not for trading at fair value through other
comprehensive income at the purchase date.



Subsequently, these assets are revalued at fair value. Gains or losses arising on subsequent
measurement of these financial assets including the change in fair value arising from non-
monetary assets in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. When
these assets or portion of these assets are sold, the gain or loss arising are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss .

Dividend and interest income are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost only if these assets are held within
a business mode! whose objective is to hold the asset to collect their contractual cash flows which
comprise payment of original principal and interest on the outstanding principal amount.

These financial assets are initially measured at cost plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
premiums or discounts are amortized using the effective interest rate method, less allowance for
impairment and included in finance income/ expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The amount of the impairment consists of the difference between the book value and present
value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Reclassification from / to this caption is not allowed as per IFRS (in case of sale of any of these
assets before maturity, results will be separately disclosed in the statement of profit or loss as
specifically required by IFRS).

Fair value

The Bank values the financial instruments, such as derivatives and non-financial assets, at fair
value at the date of the financial statements. The value of the financial instruments are also
classified through the amortized cost, as is shown in Note 34,

The fair value represents the price that will be obtained when selling the assets or the amount that
will be paid to transfer the commitment of the regulated transaction between the participants in the
market.

in the absence of the primary market, the most suitable market will be used to trade the assets
and liabilities.

The bank needs the opportunities to reach the primary or most suitable markets.

The bank values the fair value for the properties or the commitment to use the market participant's
assumptions for valuing the properties or,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assets takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.



The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Bank uses the following valuation techniques in setting the fair value of the financial
instruments:

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 ~Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Bank determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The appraisal committee, along with the Group's external appraisers, compare the changes and
the related external information on the fair value on the assets and liabilities to evaluate the
reasonableness of the changes.

For the purpose of the fair value note, the Group classifies the assets and liabilities according to
its nature and the risks of the assets and liabilities, and the value of the fair value,

The valuation of the non—current assets and liabilities, and those that do not incur interest, in
accordance with the discounted cash flow, and the set interest rate. This discount/ allowance is
amortized from the paid and collected interest revenue in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses at each consolidated financial position date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In such evidence exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the amount of impairment loss.

Impairment is determined as follows:

- For financial assets carried at amortised cost: impairment is based on the difference between
the carrying value and the estimated cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate
method.

Impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If, in @ subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases, the carrying value of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss except for equity instruments for which the reversal is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.



Property and equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment in value.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, (except for lands), to write down the cost
of property and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, when the
assets become ready to use. Depreciation rates used are as follows:

%

Equipment and furniture 5-15
Vehicles 15
Computers 20
Buildings 2

When the expected recoverable value is less than the carrying value, the assets are written down
to their recoverable amount, and the impairment is recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year. If the expectations of
useful lives are different from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for as changes in

estimate in future periods.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation arising from a past event and
the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured.

Income tax

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred taxes.

Current tax is based on taxable profits, which may differ from accounting profits published in the
consolidated financial statement. Accounting profits may include non-taxable profits or tax non-
deductible expenses in the current year or accumulated losses that are acceptable as tax

deductions or items that are non taxable or not deductible for tax purpose.

Tax is calculated based on tax rates in laws and regulations that are applicable in the Hashemite
Kingdom of Jordan.



Deferred tax are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing
differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the value of the taxable income. Moreover, deferred taxed (if any) are calculated according to
the statement of financial position liability method and based on the tax rates expected to be
applied at the tax settlement date or the realization of the deferred tax assets or liabilities.

The carrying values of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at each
consolidated financial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilized,

Fiduciary assets

Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not recognized as assets of the Bank. Fees and
commissions received for administering such assets are recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. A provision is recognized for decreases in the fair value of guaranteed fiduciary
assets below their original principal amount.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and the Group intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Revenue and expense recognition

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method except for interest on non
performing facilities, on which interest is transferred to the interest in suspense account and not
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
Commission income is recognized upon the rendering of services. Dividend income is recognized

when the right to receive payment is established (when they are approved by the general
assembly of the shareholders).

Financial assets recognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date (the date on which the
Bank commits to sale or purchase of financial assets).



Repurchase and resale agreements

Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) will
continue to be recognized in the Bank's consolidated financial statements due to the Bank's
continuing exposure to the risks and rewards of these assets using the same accounting policies
(and in case the buyer have the right to sell or re-pledge these assets, it should be reclassified as
financial assets pledged as collateral).

The proceeds of the sale are recorded under loans and borrowings. The difference between the
sale and the repurchase price is recognized as an interest expense over the agreement term
using the effective interest method.

Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse
repos) are not recognized in the Bank's consolidated financial statements since the Bank is not
able to control these assets and any risk or benefits associated with it are not related to the bank.
The related payments are recognized as part of deposits at banks and financial institutions or
direct credit facilities as applicable, and the difference between purchase and resale price is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the agreement term using the
effective interest method.

Financial assets pledged as collateral

The assets pledged by the Bank are for the purpose of providing collateral for the counter party to
the extent that counter party is permitted to sell and /or re-pledge the assets. The method of
valuation is related to the financial policies for its basic classification.

Assets seized by the Bank

Assets seized by the Bank are shown in the consolidated statement of financial position under
“Other assets” at the lower of their carrying value or fair value. Assets are revalued at the
statement of financial position date on an individual basis and impairment losses are recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, while revaluation gains are not recognized as
income. Reversal of previous impairment losses shall not result in a carrying value that exceeds
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years.



Intangible assets

Intangible assets not acquired through business combination are measured on initial recognition
at cost.

intangible assets are classified based on whether it has a finite or indefinite life.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life, while intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are assessed for impairment at each reporting date or when
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization and the
impairment expenses are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalized and are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the same period.

Indications of impairment of intangible assets are reviewed and their useful economic lives are
reassessed at each reporting date. Adjustments are reflected in the current and subsequent
periods.

Intangible assets include computer software and programs and participation fees Bank's
Management estimates the economic useful lives of each item and amortize it using the straight
line basis, where computer software and programs and participation fees are amortized by 20%
and 5% respectively.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into respective functional
currencies at exchange rates prevailing at the consolidated financial position date as issued by
Central Bank of Jordan. Any gains or losses are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences for non-monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies {such as equity
instruments) are recorded as part of the change in fair value,
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and cash balances with central bank and
financial institutions that have original maturities of three months or less, net of banks and
financial institutions deposits that have original maturities within three months and restricted
balances.

3 USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Bank’s Management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of financial assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities. These estimates and assumptions also affect the
revenues and expenses and the resultant provisions as well as fair value changes reported in
equity. In particular, considerable judgment by Management is required in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions
about several factors involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results
may differ resulting in future changes.

The Management of the Bank believes that their estimates within the consolidated financial
statements are reasonable and are as follows:

- Provision for credit losses: credit losses provision is reviewed in accordance with the Central
bank of Jordan regulations.

- Impairment losses on seized assets are based on recent assets revaluation reports issued by
reliable valuation experts for the purpose of determining the impairment in their carrying value.
The impairment is reviewed periodically.

- Income tax provision: income tax expense is charged according to the laws, regulations and
accounting standards. Income tax liability and deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
properly calculated and recognized.

- Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible and intangible
assets for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and amortization based on the
general condition of these assets and the assessment of their expected useful economic lives
in the future. Impairment loss (if any) is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

- Management reviews the carrying values of financial assets held at cost, and any identified
impairment is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

- Legal provision is calculated for any legal liabilities according to the Bank’s legal counsel
opinion.
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(4) CASH AND BALANCES AT CENTRAL BANK

The details are as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD

Cash on hand 9,024,685 6,443,146
Balances at Central Bank of Jordan:

Current accounts and demand deposits 19,963,685 11,103,441
Temn and notice deposit 50,000,000 200,000,000
Certificates of deposit - 66,600,000
Statutory cash reserve 63,938,828 52,164,971
Total 142,927,198 336,311,558

- There are no restricted balances other than the statutory cash reserve as at 31 December

2016 and 2015.

- There are no balances with maturities over three months as at 31 December 2016 and

2015.

(5)

BALANCES AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The details are as follows:
Local Banks and Financial

Foreign Banks and

Institutions Financial Institutions Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
JO JD JD 4D JD JD
Current and demand deposits - - 1,223,763 13,777,832 1,223,763 13,777,832
Deposit maturing within or less than 3 months 16,000,000 - 79,598,925 22,452,524 95,598,925 22452524
Total 16,000,000 - 80,822,688 36,230,356 96,822688 36,230,356

- Non-interest bearing balances at banks and financial institutions amounted to JD 1,223,763

as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 13,777,832).

- The restricted balances amounted to JD 3,545,000 as at 31 December 2016 to, and no

restricted balances as at 31 December 2015
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(6) DEPOSITS AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The details are as follows:

2016 2015
Deposits mature within : JD JD
3 to 6 months 13,088,196 13,914,133
More than 6 to 9 months 2,127,000 -
More than 9 to 12 months - 3,545,000
Total 15,215,196 17,459,133

- There are no restricted deposits balances as at 31 December 2016 and restricted deposits

balances amounted to JD 3,545,000 as at 31 December 2015

(7) DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES - NET

The details are as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD

Consumer
Loans and bills * 79,225,193 59,885,376
Credit cards 1,835,996 1,812,962
Real estate loans 99,947,957 79,950,491
Corporate
Overdrafts 45,449,769 45,897 514
Loans and bills * 150,250,036 98,735,145
Small and medium enterprises (“SMEs”}
Overdrafts 28,259,735 30,370,594
Loans and bills * 56,606,662 68,340,892
Government and public sector 126,978,775 64,000,000
Total 588,554,123 448,992 974
Less: Interest in suspense 11,226,426 8,927,938
Less: Provision for impairment of direct credit
facilities 9,113,050 8,471,002
Direct credit facilities, net 568,214,647 431,594,034

*  Net of interest and commissions received in advance of JD 336,367 as at 31 December 2016

(2015: JD 491,600).
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Credit facilities guaranteed by the Jordanian Government amounted to JD 126,978,775
representing 21.57% of total direct credit facilities as at December 2016 (64,000,000
representing 14.25% of total direct credit facilities as at December 2015).

Non-performing credit facilities amounted to JD 23,954,816, representing 4.07% of total direct
credit facilities as at 31 December 2016 (JD 18,992,319 representing 4.23% of total direct
credit facilities as at 31 December 2015).

Non performing credit facilities net of interest in suspense amounted to JD 12,728,390
representing 2.20% of total direct credit facilities net of interest in suspense as at 31
December 2016 (JD 10,064,381 representing 2.29% of total direct credit facilities net of
interest in suspense as at 31 December 2015).

No interest in suspense against performing credit facilities as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

In it's board meeting no. (1/2015) dated 24 February 2015, the Bank have transferred an
amount of JD 2,318,305 from the non- performing facilities with the related provisions and
interest in suspense to off balance sheet, the bank will maintain it's legal right to collect the

amounts from the debtors.

Provision for impairment of direct credit facilities

The movement on the provision for impairment of direct credit facilities is as follows:

Real estate
Consumer loans Corporate SMEs Total
2016 JD JD JD JD JD
At 1 January 4,412,834 825,853 438,782 2,793,533 8,471,002
Charges / (Recoveries) for the year 629,136 47,521 {(393,035) 365,097 648,719
Utilized from provision (debts written off) (6,671) - @ o (6,671)
At 31 December 5,035,299 873,374 45,747 3,158,630 9,113,050
Individual impairment provision 4,878,356 836,586 - 3,150,542 8,865,484
Collective impairment provision
for watch list debts 156,943 36,788 45,747 8,088 247 566
Total 5,035,299 873,374 45,747 3,158,630 9,113,050
2015
At 1 January 3,918,618 866,588 229135 2417580 7,431,921
Charges / {(Recoveries) for the year 784,758 (40,735) 209,647 375,953 1,329,623
Utilized from provision (debts written off) _ (290,542) = 2 - (290,542)
At 31 December 4,412,834 825,853 438,782 2,793,533 8,471,002
Individual impairment provision 4,292,509 795,399 - 2,784,889 7,872,797
Collective impairment provision
for watch list debts 120,325 30,454 438,782 8,644 598,205
Total 4,412,834 825,853 438,782 2,793,533 8,471,002

Provisions that are no longer needed due to settlement or debt repayments and were transferred
against other debts amounted to JD 1,735,439 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 1,337,934)
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Interest in suspense

The movement of interest in suspense is as follows:

Real estate
2016 Consumer loans SMEs Total
JD JD JD JD
At 1 January 5,576,788 1,099,374 2,251,776 8,927,938
Add: Suspended interest during the year 1,573,219 205,041 1,076,551 2,854,811
Less: Interest transferred to income (281,493) (28,122) - (309,615)
Less: interest in suspense written off (246,708) . E (246,708)
At 31 December 6,621,806 1,276,293 3,328,327 11,226,428
Real estate
2015 Consumer loans SMEs Total
JD JD JD JD
At 1 January 6,886,732 960,919 2,667,745 10,515,396
Add: Suspended interest during the year 1,466,686 138,455 696,569 2,301,710
Less: Interest transferred to income {416,451) - - {416,451}
Less: interest in suspense written off (2,360,179) : (1,112,538) _ (3,472,717)
At 31 Decembar 5,576,788 1,099,374 2,251,776 8,927,938
(8) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The details are as follows:
2016 2015

JD JD
Quoted shares 354,694 126,250
Unquoted shares 124,085 124,085
Total 478,779 250,335

- Dividends distribution on the aforementioned financial assets amounted to JD 18,750 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: 17,000).
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(9) FINANC|AL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

The details are as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD

Unquoted financial assets
Treasury bills 24 856,753 -
Treasury bonds 280,022,353 198,560,077
Corporate bonds 10,261,852 10,268,122
Total unquoted financial assets 315,140,958 208,828,199
Allowance for impairment losses (651,300) {541,800)
Total financial assets at amortized cost 314,489,658 208,286,399
Analysis of bonds and bills
Fixed income 314,489,658 208,286,399

- All financial bonds mature during the years 2017 to 2026.

- Allowance for impairment loss of corporate bonds amounted to JD 651,300 as at 31
December 2016 { 2015: JD 541,800)

- During 2016 the Bank sold financial assets at amortized cost for JD 35,034,196 which resulted
in & gain on sale of financial assets at amortized cost of JD 3,129,853.

- During 2015 the Bank sold financial assets at amortized cost for JD 33,000,000 which resulted
in & gain on sale of financial assets at amortized cost of JD 3,311,961. Moreover, the bank
has reassessed its financial model resulting in the reclassification of some financial assets at
amortized cost to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Those assets mature
between the years 2016 and 2019 as disclosed in note 10.

PLEDGED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The details are as follows:

2016 2015
Pledged Pledged
financial Related financial Related
assets liabilities assets liabilities
JD JD JD JD

Financial assets at amortized cost 126,403,000 111,204,031 111,846,000 111,760,683
Total 126,403,000 111,204,031 111,846,000 111,760,683
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- The below bonds have been pledged against the following:

Issuance Bond
Bond Number Balance Maturity Date Pledged against
Treasury Bonds 28/2014 351,000 27/04/2017 Borrowing from Central Bank
Treasury Bonds 512018 52,000 17/0242021 Borrowing from Central Bank
Treasury Bonds 8/2016 15,000,000 01/03/2021 Deposit for the Social Security Corporation
Treasury Bonds 23/2015 33,000,000 20/08/2022 Deposit for the Social Security Corporation
Treasury Bonds 35/2015 28,000,000 26/10/2022 Deposit for the Social Security Corporation
Treasury Bonds 44/2015 50,000,000 23/11/2022 Deposit for the Social Security Corporation
Total 126,403,000

(10) _ FiNANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

In the board meeting number (5/2015) dated 28 July 2015, the board of directors approved to
reclassify some of the treasury bonds maturing between the years 2016 and 2019 from financial
assets at amortized cost to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with an amount of
JD 29,613,000 resulting in revaluation gain of JD 2,197,696. During 2016 bank sold all portfolio of
assets through profit and loss which resulted in loss amounted to 64,418 JD

(11)

The details are as follows:

2016

Cost:

At 1 January

Additions

Transfer from advance on purchasing
property and equipment

Disposals

At 31 Decembher

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January

Depreciation charged during the year
Disposals

At 31 December

Net book value of property and equipment

Advance on purchasing property and
equipment

Net book value of property and

equipment at 31 December

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Furniture
and

Buildings Fixtures  Vehicles Computers Total

JD JD JD JD JD
13,709,318 4,774,182 227,527 3,854,923 22,565,951
- 241,328 - 55,418 296,746
- 296,702 - 26,952 323,654
- (164,687) - (6,004)  (170,691)
13,709,319 5,147,525 227,527 3,931,289 23,015,660
528,934 3,279,284 121,296 2,954,046 6,883,560
274,186 375,560 22,524 330,653 1,002,923
- (157,358) - {6,004)  (163,362)
803,120 3,497,486 143,820 3,278,695 7,723,121
12,906,199 1,650,038 83,707 652,594 15,292,539
6,583,673 393,821 - 76,790 7,054,284
19,489,872 2,043,860 83,707 720,384 22,346,823
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Furniture

and
Buildings Fixtures Vehicles Compulers Total

2015 JD JD JD JD JD
Cost:
At 1 January 13,026,773 4,405,251 179,009 3,623,701 21,234,734
Additions - 117,899 71,057 222,557 411,513
Transfer from advance on purchasing

property and equipment 682,546 253,932 - 8,665 945,143
Disposals - (2,900) (22,539) - {25,439)
At 31 December 13,709,319 4,774,182 227,527 3,854,923 22,565,951
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 310,172 2,941,465 100,727 2,565,048 5917412
Depreciation charged during the year 218,762 340,719 22,534 388,998 971,013
Disposals - (2,900)  {1,965) D {4,865}
At 31 December 528,934 3,279,284 121,296 2,954,046 6,883,560
Net book value of property and equipment 13,180,385 1,494,898 106,231 900,877 15,682,391
Advance on purchasing property and

equipment 6,583,673 241,805 - 436,612 7,262,090
Net book value of property and
equipment at 31 December 19,764,058 1,736,703 105,231 1,337,489 22,944,481

- Property and equipment includes fully depreciated assets amounting to JD 4,958,373 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: JD 4,137,010} and are still in use as at of the date the financial

statement.

- The estimated cost to complete the projects under progress amounted to JD 7,440,703 as at

31 December 20186.

{12) INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

The details are as follows;

At 1 January

Additions

Transfer from advance on purchasing property and
equipment

Amortization charge for the year

At 31 December

Computer programs,

software, key money, and

participation fees
2016 2015
JD JD
935,559 1,026,785
32,012 89,781
606,955 -
(219,270} (181,007)
1,355,256 935,559

- Intangible assets include fully amortized assets amounted to JD 1,257,391 as at 31 December
20186 (2015: JD 1,111,916) and are still in use up to date.

-18-



13 OTHER ASSETS

The details are as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
Accrued interest and revenue 7,790,927 5,907,185
Prepaid expenses 443,401 452,032
Assets seized by the Bank* 2,938,357 3,214,043
Others 2,390,998 1,529,278
Total 13,563,683 14,102,538

*

According to Central Bank of Jordan regulations, assets seized by the Bank must be disposed
off within two years from the seizure date.

The movement on assets seized by the Bank during the year is as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
At 1 January 3,214,043 3,550,468
Additions 342,203 13,757
Disposals (170,298) (60,292)
Provision against seized assets* (444,115) (291,336)
(Provision) recovery of Impairment loss (3,476) 1,446
At 31 December 2,938,357 3,214,043

* This provision was provided for in accordance with the central bank of Jordan regulations
against seized assets.
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(14)

The details are as follows:

Current and demand deposits

Time deposits

Total

Current and demand deposits

Time deposits

Total

BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTION'S DEPOSITS

15 CUSTQMERS' DEPOSITS

The details are as follows:

2016

Current and demand deposits
Saving accounts

Time deposits

Certificates of deposit

Total

2016
Inside Qutside
Jordan Jordan Taotal
JD Foreign JD Foreign JD
- - 536,838 12,511 549,349
5,000,000 32,623,300 - 6,220,215 43,843,515
5,000,000 32,623,300 536,838 6,232,726 44,392,864
2015
Inside Qutside
Jordan Jordan Total
JD Foreign JD Foreign JD
- - 488,775 29,790 518,565
5,000,000 11,415,802 - 12,120,680 28,536,482
5,000,000 11,415,802 488,775 12,150,470 29,055,047
Government
and public
Retail Corporate SMEs Sectors Total
JD JD JD JD JD
27,776,579 38,361,599 36,172,012 72,001,688 174,311,878
28,165,838 399,578 115,987 7,611 28,689,014
193,836,663 180,406,773 161,248,927 254,417,521 789,909,884
7,990,218 - 126,217 - 8,116,435
257,769,298 219,167,950 197,663,143 326,426,820 1,001,027,211
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Government

and public
Retail Corporate SMEs Sectors Total
2015 JD JD JD JD JD
Current and demand deposits 35,209,557 25,069,017 33,481,934 9,717,662 103,478,170
Saving accounts 23,242,873 48,063 412,296 6,718 23,709,950
Time deposits 201,714,131 194,317,164 132,927,269 252,576,250 781,534,814
Certificates of deposit 7,919,297 < 55,000 = 7,974,297
Total 268,085,858 219,434,244 166,876,499 262,300,630 916,697,231

- The deposits of the Jordanian government and public sector inside Jordan amounted to JD
326,426,820 representing 32,61% of total deposits as at 31 December 2016 (JD 262,300,630
representing 28,61% of total deposits as at 31 December 2015).

- Non-interest bearing deposits amounted to JD 100,477,605 representing 10.04% of total
deposits as at 31 December 2016 (JD 84,299,945 representing 9.20% of total deposits as at

31 December 2015).

- Restricted deposits amounted to JD 4,539 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 4,594).

- Dormant deposits amounted to JD 2,553,014 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 1,168,137).

{16) MARGIN ACCOUNTS

The details are as follows:

Margins on direct credit facilities
Margins on indirect credit facilities
Others

Total

2016 2015
JD JD
74,281,791 95,380,964
12,883,137 3,587,085
1,003,952 630,320
88,168,880 99,598,369

-21 -
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(18) OTHER PROVISIONS

The details are as follows:

Provided for Utilized
Balance at during during Transferred to Balance at
2016 1 January the year the year income 31 December
JD JD JD JD JD

Provision for lawsuits filed

against the bank 218,786 21,417  (158,384) {8,755) 73,0684
2015

Provision for lawsuits filed

against the bank 182,275 38,965 {2,200) (254) 218,786

Other provision recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents the provision
provided for during the year net of the provision transferred to income, if any.

19) INCOME TAX
(A} Income Tax provision

The movement on the income tax provision is as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
At 1 January 4,299,315 3,324,083
Income tax expense for the year 5,684,628 5,434,554
Income tax paid (4.648,751) (4,459,322)
At 31 December 5,235,192 4,299,315

Income tax appearing on the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents the

following:
2016 2015
JD JD
Current year income tax 5,684,628 5,434,554
Deferred tax assets for the year (29,692) (211,663)
Deferred tax liabilities for the year 896,754 167,557
5,651,690 5,390,448
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- Afinal seftlement has been reached with the Income Tax Department regarding the Bank
tax up to 2014. Tax reports for 2015 were submitted to tax department and due tax was paid

accordingly .

- A final settlement has been reached with Income Tax Department regarding the
Subsidiary tax up to 2012 and 2014 . Tax reports for 2013 and 2015 were submitted to tax
department and due tax was paid accordingly.

(B)

The details are as follows:

Included accounts

Deterred tax assets
Allowance for impairment
losses of credit facilities
Reserve for discounted loans
Provision of impairment losses
of financial assets at amortized
cost

Provision for employees & BOD
remuneration

Provision for watch list loans
Provision for seized assets for
more than 4 years

Impairment loss on real estate
Provision for lawsuit filed
against the Bank

Total

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax assets / liabilities:

Provision for properties and building

depreciation

Total

2016 2015
Balance Released Additions  Balance at
at during the  during the 3 Deferred Deferred
1 January year year December Tax Tax
JD JD JD JD JD JOD
1,767,570 - - 1,767,570 618,650 618,649
5,219 - - 5219 1,827 1,827
541,800 - 109,500 651,300 227,955 189,630
374,214 {374,214) 398,313 398,313 139,410 130,975
598,205 (1,150,562) 799,923 247,566 86,648 209,372
291,336 - 444 115 735,451 257,408 101,967
- - 3,476 3,476 1,217 -
218,786 {158,384) 12,662 73,064 25,572 76,575
3,797,130 (1,683,160) 1,767,989 3,881,959 1,358,687 1,328,995
2016 2015
Released
Balance during Additions Balance at
at the during the 31 Deferred Deferred
1 January year year December Tax Tax
JD JD JD JD JD JD
478,736  (125,665) 402,104 755,175 264,311 167,557
478,736  (125,665) 402,104 755,175 264,311 167,557
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The movement on deferred tax assets account is as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
At 1 January 1,328,995 1,117,332
Additions during the year 618,798 436,625
Released during the year (589,106) (224,962)
At 31 December 1,358,687 1,328,995
The movement on deferred tax liabilities is as follows:
2016 2015
JD JD
At 1 January 167,557 -
Additions during the year 140,736 167,657
Released during the year {43,982) -
At 31 December 264,311 167,557

(C)  Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxable profit is as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD

Accounting profit 16,558,726 15,399,674
Non-taxable income (2,515,928) (1,099,237)
Non- deductible expenses 1,928,318 1,251,751
Taxable profit 15,972,116 15,552,188
Effective income tax rate 34,13% 35%
Statutory income tax rate 35% 35%
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(20)  OTHER LIABILITIES

The details are as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
Accrued interest expense 5,627,895 5,806,785
Interest and commissions received in advance 67,421 246,090
Accrued expenses 795,767 901,878
Social security and income tax deposits 183,252 123,033
Checks and payments order 1,943,630 2,356,940
Inter-branches settiement 911,089 395,347
Board of Director remunerations 90,638 88,764
Restricted balances 2,660,528 840,606
QOthers 985,937 903,165
Total 13,266,157 11,662,608

{21) AUTHORISED AND PAID IN CAPITAL

Issued, authorized, and paid in capital

As at 31 December 2018, the paid in capital amounted to 100,000,000 (2015: JD 100,000,000)
each having a par value of JD 1.

22) RESERVES
Statutory reserve

As required by the Banking and Companies Law, 10% of the profit before tax and fees is
transferred to the statutory reserve. This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

Voluntary Reserve

This balance represents maximum 20% of profit before tax transferred during previous years.
The reserve shall be used at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and the General Assembly
has the right to distribute it to the shareholders in part or in full,

General banking risk reserve

This reserve is appropriated from retained earnings in compliance with the regulations of the
Central Bank of Jordan.

The use of the following reserves is restricted as follows:

Name of the reserve Amount Nature of restriction

JD
Statutory reserve 10,411,064 Banks and Companies Laws
General banking risk reserve 4,167,794 Central Bank of Jordan regulations
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(23)  FAIR VALUE RESERVE, NET

The details are as foliows:

2016 2015
JD JD
Balance at 1 January 1,250 (58,750)
Change in fair value reserve (54,250) 60,000
Balance at 31 December (53,000) 1,250
24) RETAINED EARNINGS
The details are as follows:
2016 2015
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,354,418 11,616,667
Profit for the year 10,908,035 10,009,226
Transfers to reserves (2,447 498) (2,271,475)
Dividends* (5,000,000} (4,000,000)
Balance at the end of the year 18,814,855 16,354,418

Retained eamings includes an amount of JD 1,358,687 representing deferred tax assets as at
31 December 2016 (2015: JD 1,328,995) and according to the Central Bank of Jordan this
amount is restricted from use.

Retained earnings include a restricted amount of JD 48,831, which represents the effect of the
early adoption of IFRS 9, except for the amounts realized through the actual selling of the
respective assets.

* In its ordinary meeting held on 6 April 2016, the general assembly approved the distribution of
cash dividends for the year 2015 with a percentage of 5% from paid in capital.
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25 INTEREST INCOME

The details are as follows:

Direct credit facilities
Retail:

Loans and bills

Credit cards

Real estate loans

Corporate:
Overdrafts
Loans and bills

SMEs:

Overdrafts

Loans and bills

Government and public sector

Balances at Central Bank of Jordan
Balances at banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at amortized cost

Total

{26) INTEREST EXPENSE

The details are as follows:

Banks and financial institution deposits

Customers deposits:

Current accounts and demand deposits
Saving accounts

Time deposits

Certificates of deposits

Margin accounts

Loans and borrowings

Deposit guarantee fees

Total

-98-

2016 2015
JD JD
4335808 3,621,667
94,103 92,838
5461196 4,915,331
2,997,269 2,269,168
9,241,925 6,410,891
1863641 1,501,518
3,481,893 4,437,387
5523,864 4,291,158
2,862,976 3,690,745
1,087,196 537,562
18,982.472 16,022,075
55932,433 47,790,340
2016 2015
JD JD
753,267 524,447
28,898,203 23,889,911
657,636 503,026
12,931 7,295
28,045772 22,987,945
181,864 391,645
3,358471 3,732,843
87,235 105,362
2,143,048 1,495,909
35,240,224 29,748,472




(27) NET COMMISSION INCOME

The details are as follows:

Commission income:

Direct credit facilities commissions
Indirect credit facilities commissions
Brokerage Company commissions

Net Commission income

28 GAINS FROM FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The details are as follows:

From transaction
From revaluation

Total

(29)  OTHER INCOME

The details are as follows:

Credit cards commissions

Outgoing and incoming transfers commissions
Certified checks commissions

Checks under collection commissions

Salary transfers commissions

Returned checks commissions

Safety deposit boxes commissions

Check books commissions

Phone, fax, water and electricity commissions
(Gain from redemption of written off debts
(Gain from sale of seized assets

Dormant accounts commission

Commissions from private banking products
Accounts management fees

Other revenue

Total

.99.-

2016 2015
JD JD
1,341,017 1,080,194
1,251,395 780,029
73,397 83,185
2,665,809 1,943,408
2016 2015
JD JD
255,904 242,590
672,931 665,096
928,835 907,686
2016 2015
JD JD
341,175 297,448
258,648 231,306
12,631 13,617
19,071 18,152
86,931 69,989
126,755 128,154
20,540 18,470
35,131 32,360
4,309 3,794
148,055 110,876
35,201 27,707
23,247 17,566
23,981 7,822
318,994 253,994
461,228 82,114
1,815,897 1,313,269




30 EMPLOYEES EXPENSES

The details are as follows:

Employees’ salaries and benefits

Bank's contribution to social security

Medical expenses
Employees training
Travelling per diem
Life insurance
Others

Total

31 OTHER EXPENSES

The details are as follows:

Insurance

Electricity and water
Vehicles

Transportation

Board of Director transportation
Maintenance

Computer

Stationary and printing
Hospitality

Donations

Money transfer

Real estate

Books and magazines

Rent

Consultation and lawyer fees
Professional fees

Other consulting fees
Telephone and fax

Media and advertising

Taxes and license fees

Losses from sale of property and equipment

Private subscriptions
Governmental subscriptions
Security

Board of director remunerations
Legal fees

Investor guarantee fund

Others

Total

2016 2015
JO JD
4,737,220 4,255,018
500,138 419,198
261,781 232,006
57,230 52,121
24,265 23,406
15,513 7,790
41,008 25,828
5,637,153 5,015,367
2016 2015
JD JD
257,180 252,271
512,238 539,609
10,014 12,525
19,201 30,568
57,981 26,400
285,828 307,502
513,076 421,541
159,535 158,847
67,005 56,945
56,048 36,212
37,819 39,004
1,950 4,825
2,855 3,322
437,033 363,811
113,838 128,887
65,840 71,949
114,880 98,066
609,826 589,643
433,454 396,322
199,311 205,115
157 2,074
115,642 136,089
228,754 271,917
57,436 51,891
90,638 88,764
183,181 193,979
1,831 2177
20,317 15,802
4,652,868 4,506,157
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(32) BasIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The details are as follows:

Profit for the year (JD)
Weighted average number of shares during the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
bank’s shareholders

33 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The details are as follows:

Cash and balances with central bank maturing

within 3 months

Add: Balances at banks and financial institutions
maturing within 3 months

Less: Banks and financial institutions’ deposits

maturing within 3 months
Less: restricted balances

Total

2016 2015
10,808,035 10,009,226
100,000,000 100,000,000
JO/Fils JD/Fils
0/109 0/100
2016 2015
JD JD
142,927,198 336,311,558
96,822,688 36,230,356
(39,392,864)  (24,055,047)
(3,545,000) .
196,812,022 348,486,867

(34) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the Bank and the following

subsidiary:
Company’s capital
Ownership
Company name percentage 2016 2015
% JD JD
Societe Generale Brokerage Company 100 750,000 750,000
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Debit interest rates on credit facilities in Jordanian Dinar range between 1.25 % - 13%
Debit interest rates on credit facilities in foreign currency range between 3 % - 6.25 %
Credit interest rates on deposits in Jordanian Dinar range between 0.05% - 6.5%
Credit interest rates on deposits in foreign currency range between 0.01 % - 3 %

Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
Benefits (Salaries, wages and bonuses) of key
executive Management 1,084,431 1,136,155

35 PROPOSED DIVIDENDS

In its meeting held on 23 February 2017, the board of directors approved the distribution of
cash dividends for the year 2016 of 7% of the paid in capital (which amounts to JD 7 millions)
and are subject to the approval of the Central Bank of Jordan and the general assembly.

(36) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THAT ARE NOT PRESENTED AT FAIR
VALUE

2016 2015
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
JD JD JD JD

Cash and balances at CBJ 245,940,397 245,940,397 383,657,901 383,557,901
Financial assets at amortized cost 440,892,658 450,271,082 320,132,399 332,403,070
Direct credit facilities - net 568,214,647 568,214,647 431,594,034 431,594,034
Banks and financial institutions'

deposits 44 392,864 44,392,864 29,055,047 29,055,047
Customers' deposits 1,001,027,211 1,001,027,211 916,697,231 916,697,231
Margin accounts 88,168,880 88,168,880 99,598,369 99,598,369
Loans and borrowings 17,307,123 17,307,123 20,855,509 20,855,508
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37 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Bank maintains strong risk management environment and a balanced exposure between
risks and returns that aims to achieve on the whole portfolio level and on each division of work
separately.

The interaction between Bank's activities and the diversity of products and services provided
requires definition, measurement, aggregation, risk management and effective allotment of
capital to achieve the typical standard of returns against risks. The Bank manages the risks
exposed to in an organized, standardized and transparent mode through risk policy which
formulates the comprehensive risk management as a fundamental part of organization chart,
in addition through the risk measurement and control procedures.

Characteristics of Bank comprehensive risk management policy:

- The Bank's board of directors provides guidance and vision of risk management.

- Risk management is a main procedure in the Bank and is considered a major duty of all
employees.

- Risk management in the Bank is independent from the other Bank divisions.

- Internal audit section or function of the Bank presents reports to the Bank's audit
committee and provides independent opinion on the adherence of each division with risk
management policies and procedures in addition to the efficiency of risk management in
all divisions.

- Risk management assist and support the top management in the control and the effective
management of risks that the Bank face. The following are the main responsibilities of risk
management:

- Ensuring that the general strategy of the Bank is consistent with the acceptable risk
levels set by the Bank's board and executed by the top management, as well as the
risk policies, procedures, and methods coincide with Bank's acceptable risk levels.

- Assessing and analysing the Bank's risks profile through developing and applying risk
contro| process.

- Creating and developing clear standards to define and limits to each type of risks.

- Developing and elaborating methods to measure each type of risks.

- Providing recommendations of strategies and procedures that must be adopted to
reduce the risks.
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- The Bank applies Basel Il principles and Central Bank of Jordan regulations concerning
risk management framework, as follows:

1. The Bank applies capital adequacy approach within the Basel Il framework which
sets the standards to calculate capital adequacy ratio and maintain the minimum
level of required capital to cover credit risks, market risks (standardized approach),
and operational risks (basic indicator approach).

2. During 2016 the Bank applied stress testing within the Basel Il pillar 2 framework,
these tests aim to reinforce risks definition and management operations and provide
risk management tools that comprehend other risk management tools to enhance
capital management and liquidity of the Bank.

3. The Bank has developed written policies and procedures verifying the principles that
will be adopted by the Bank regarding Internal Capital Assessment Adequacy
Process (ICAAP), which aims to develop and use better tools to manage the risk in
addition to measure and assess the capital adequacy level capability to assimilate
overall risks on the Bank.

Risk measurements and reporting methods:

The Bank measures and classifies risks and its effects on the Bank results regularly and
according to risk type.

Credit Risks
Credit risk is the risk that other obligor's (borrower) is unable to meet its financial obligations to
the Bank (lender) which may result in losses and rise to credit risk.

Credit Risk Management Strategy:

The Board of Directors defines credit risk management strategy of the Bank and adopt the
credit risk policies to ensure that risks are at acceptable level, which reflects the ability to
handle risks by Bank's Board of Directors compared to the expected future returns.

Risk management model rely on a secure autonomy and assurance of right evaluation
process and supervision and providing credit risk reports consistent with the policies and
authorities limits which provide guidelines to daily management of risk exposures.

The objective of credit policy of the Bank is to create strong risk management based on
policies and procedures that determine the Bank lending activities and its main objective is to
achieve highly credible and efficient financial results. The permanent procedures in the credit
policy guideline require full review of all credit departments recommendations by every credit
control and administrative division before it is presented to the specific credit committee and
when necessary, securities are requested against the credit facilities to mitigate the risk of
related credit.
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Credit risk management structure:

Top management follows the Board of Directors’ strategy with regard to credit risk
management in addition to preparing the roles and the procedures to determine, evaluate,
monitor, and control credit risk.

Credit risk management structure includes several executive committees, which are
responsible to discuss the credit risk analysis reports of the Bank's portfolio as follows:

Risk committee on Board of Director's level: discusses risk reports including credit risk report,
and present the report to the risk committee members of the Board.

Credit risk committee: discusses credit risk report on top management level regarding the
assets of the portfolio and its distribution among borrowers, economic sectors, internal credit
ratings, and facility types, in addition to nonperforming portfolio and the updated actions taken
in the legal cases against clients and other related risk subjects.

Sensitive risk committees: several meetings held on different management levels based on
credit exposure of clients, who have reflected weakness indicators or are related to a
particular economic sector with high instability and bad indicators.

Main characteristics of credit risk management:
Risk management process is based on the relationship and interference between:

Plans and strategies of the Bank’s portfolio: portfolio plans and strategies are set based on the
required financial results and the desired return combined with the acceptable risk level to the
Bank, at the same time, these plans and strategies are designed at each unit level as required
and are based on the approved limits and concentration for each unit to achieve the overall
expected return within the acceptable risk level.

Credit granting, renewal, increase, modification and control: Each unit grant, evaluate and
manage its related credit portfolio according to the plans and strategies of the unit and in
accordance with the return and required risk level through market and economic studies in
addition to analyzing the borrower's related financial statements and management and other
measurements, thus making a credit decision and deciding on the type of collaterals required.
Consequently, each borrower will be classified within the rating system of the Bank.

Performance evaluation and reporting: a periodic evaluation at each unit level and at the
Bank's credit portfolio level to assess the efficiency and accuracy of plans and strategies
execution and goals achievement and results of each unit of the Bank separately. In addition
the Bank’s portfolio is evaluated by its distribution among economic sectors, borrowers, rates,
periods, products, collaterals and other basis.
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Periodic review on companies’ internal rates is performed by the Bank’s risk management in
accordance with the specialized management; the rating is modified constantly according to
clients' credit record and developments of financial situation and the economic activity based
on the risk degree the Bank is exposed to through this relationship. Taking into consideration
that all credit policies, programs and new measurements of assets quality, are reviewed and
approved by credit risk management committee; which includes premier members in business
and risk management.

Credit risk monitoring:

The Bank’s exposure is monitored constantly through the early identification systems of
possible changes in creditworthiness of the customers which aims to detect any negative
indicator that may lead to a potential loss in the quality of the credit risk. The early
identifications is being done through periodic credit reports which is presented to the top
management and it is also used to reassess the customer's financial position for renewal
purposes or major changes in the customer financial position to enable the management to
take the right action on time.

Credit risk mitigation:

The variation of credit portfolio is a major factor of the Bank's strategy to mitigate credit risk
through distribution of credit portfolio based on borrower type, economic sector of borrowers
and other factors which guarantee the highest leve! of returns within acceptable risk to the
Bank. In addition, risk mitigations are used such as obtaining collaterals and guarantees
which are considered effective factors to mitigate this type of risk within the Bank's portfolio,
these collaterals are controlled and monitored constantly.

Credit risk concentration:

Credit risk concentration arises when groups of parties in similar commercial activity, within
the same geographical area, or with the same economic characteristics, affect the ability to
meet their commitments in case of economic, political or other changes.

The Bank seeks to manage the concentration risk through diversifying its credit activities to

avoid high concentration of unacceptable risk of individuals or group of clients or particular
business sector and through spreading the portfolio to avoid any possible losses.
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1)  Credit risk exposures (Net of the provision for impairment losses and interest in
suspense and before collaterals and other risk mitigations).

Consolidated statement of financial position items:

Cash and balances at Central Bank
Balances at banks and financial institutions
Deposits at banks and financial institutions
Credit facilities:

Consumer

Real estate Loans

Corporate lending

Small and medium enterprises (SME's)
Government and public sector

Bonds and treasury bills

Included in financial assets at amortized cost
Included in pledge financial assets

Included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Other assets

Total consolidated statement of financial position items

Contingent liabilities
Letters of guarantee
Letters of credit
Acceptances

Unutilized credit facilities

Total contingent liabilities

Total consolidated statement of financial position items
and contingent liabilities

2016 2015
JD JD

133,902,513 329,868,412
96,822,688 36,230,356
15,215,196 17,459,133
568,214,647 431,594,034
69,404,084 51,708,716
97,798,290 78,025,264
195,654,058 144,193,877
78,379,440 93,666,177
126,978,775 64,000,000
440,892,658 351,984,461
314,489,658 208,286,399
126,403,000 111,846,000
- 31,852,062
7,790,927 5,907,185

1,262,838,629

1,173,043,581

61,496,562 63,118,676
10,506,800 13,264,819
5,816,902 5,596,885
75,932,702 48,200,414
153,752,966 130,180,794

1,416,591,595

1,303,224,375

- The table above shows the maximum exposure of credit risk as at 31 December 2016 and

2015 without taking into consideration the collaterals and credit risk mitigations.

- Regarding assets items that are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the above exposure is based on the balance as it appears in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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The following is the distribution of the fair value of collateral against credit facilities (risk

mitigations):

2016

Collaterals
Low risk

Acceptable risk
Non performing:

Substandard
Doubtful
Loss

Total

Comprising of:
Cash collateral

Real estate

Vehicles and machinery
Jordanian government

guarantee

2015

Collaterals
Low risk

Acceptable risk
Non performing:
Substandard

Doubtful
Loss

Total

Comprising of:
Cash collateral

Real estate

Vehicles and machinery
Jordanian government

guarantee

Government
Real estate and public
Consumer loans Corporate SMEs sector Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD
4,757,955 7,644,583 7,840,231 21,561,211 126,978,775 168,782,755
14,612,176 80,948,981 21,882,973 9,467,187 - 126,811,317
145,976 2,555,985 - 4,362,282 - 7,064,243
4,417 570,842 - - - 575,259
20,549 797,118 - 1,682,052 - 2,499,719
121,010 1,188,025 - 2,680,230 - 3,989,265
19,416,107 91,149,549 20,723,204 35,390,680 126,978,775 302,658,315
4,757,955 7,644 583 7,840,231 21,561,211 - 41,803,980
3,476,635 B3,504,966 21,780,584 12,986,062 - 121,748,247
11,181,517 - 102,389 843,407 - 12,127,313
- - - - 126,978,775 126,978,775
19,416,107 91,149,549 29,723,204 35,390,680 126,978,775 302,658,315
Government
Real estate and public
Consumer loans Corporate SMEs sector Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD

4716,716 9,161,918 14,804,496 25,546,762 64,000,000 118,229,892
10,337,994 77,337,194 16,787,008 28,248,929 - 132,711,125
2,353,987 2,399,126 - 1,580,509 - 6,333,622
179,855 724,515 - - - 904,370
235,056 361,450 - - - 596,506
1,939,076 1,313,161 - 1,580,509 - 4,832,748
17,408,697 88,898,238 31,591,504 55,376,200 64,000,000 257,274,639
4,716,716 9,161,918 14,804,496 25,546,762 - 54,229,892
1,723,758 79,499,775 16,595,304 26,940,422 - 124,759,260
10,968,222 236,545 191,704 2,889,016 - 14,285,487
- - - - 64,000,000 64,000,000
17,408,687 88,898,238 31,591,504 55,376,200 64,000,000 257,274,639

-41 -



Rescheduled Debts:

Are defined as debts that were classified as “non-performing” facilities, and subsequently
removed and included under "Watch List" based on proper rescheduling. Total rescheduled
debts amounted to JD 2,324,193 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 2,165,114).

The outstanding balance of the rescheduled debts represents loans that are classified under
watch list or transferred to performing facilities.

Restructured Debts:

Restructuring is the rearrangement of credit facilities in terms of instalments, extending the
term of credit facilities, deferment of instalments, or extending the grace period. Accordingly,
those facilities are classified as "Watch List". Total restructured debts amounted to JD
6,557,422 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 5,131,200).

3) Bonds and treasury bills:
The following table illustrates the classifications of bonds and treasury bills according to the
external classification institutions as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:

Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets at
through other Financial fair value Pledged
Classification comprehensive assets at through Financial
degrees: income amortized cost  Profit or loss assets Total
2016 JD JD JD JD JD
Governmental - 304,879,106 - 126,403,000 431,282,106
Unclassified - 9,610,552 - - 9,610,552
Total - 314,489,658 - 126,403,000 440,892,658
Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets at
through other Financial fair value Pledge
Classification comprehensive assets at through Financial
degrees: income amortized cost  Profit or loss assets Total
2015 JD JD JD JD JD
Governmental - 198,560,077 31,852,062 111,846,000 342,258,139
Unclassified - 9,726,322 - - 9,726,322
Total - 208,286,399 31,852,062 111,846,000 351,984,461

-42-



4)  Concentration in credit exposures according to the geographic distribution, as follows:

2016

Cash and balances at
central bank

Balances at banks and
financial institutions
Credit facllities:
Consumer

Real estale loans
Corporate

Small and medium
enterprise (SME's)
Government and public

sector

Bills and treasury bonds:

Included in financial assels

at amortized cost

Included in financial assels
at fair through loss or profit
Included in pledged financial

assels

Other assels

Total 2016

Total 2015

* Except for Arab countries.

Other
Inside Middle East
Jordan countries Europe Asia * America Others Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

133,902,513 - - - - - 133,902,513
16,000,000 82,650,341 12,847,303 31,275 399,938 9,027 112,037,884
560,214,647 - - - - - 568,214,647
69,404,084 - - - - - 69,404,084
97,798,290 - - - - - 97,796,290
195,654,058 - - - - - 195,654,058
78,379,440 - - - - - 78,379,440
126,978,775 - - - - - 126,978,775
440,892,658 - - - - - 44{),892 658
314,489,658 - - - - - 314,489,658
126,403,000 - - - - - 126,403,000
7,422 B56 368,071 - - - - 7,790,927
1,166,432,674 83,018,412 12,947,303 1,275 399,938 9,027 1,262,838,629
1,119,219,257 22,844,688 25,925,504 207,489 4,827245 19,398  1,173,043,581
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Market Risks

Market risks arise from fluctuations in interest and exchange rates in addition to stock prices. The
level of tolerated risk values is set by the Board of Directors.

The Bank works towards managing and mitigating these market risks through establishing a
specialized and independent unit for this purpose holding the responsibility of managing the above
mentioned risks. Additionally, the bank established the necessary policies and procedures in this
respect since the duties of the market risk unit is represented in managing the Bank’s assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies, in addition to monitoring all related operations in foreign currencies,
ensuring that they are within the limits specified by management and reporting any exceed of limits
in case of occurrence.

The Bank's adopted policy is not to take any open positions or execute any operations for its own
account only in exceptional cases subject to the Board of Directors approval, therefore most
investment operations are done on behalf of the Bank's clients as the Bank acts only as an
investment broker. Furthermore, the general rule of the Bank is not to have any open positions with
amounts exceeding the limits specified by management in any foreign currency.

The Bank's positions in foreign currencies are subject to daily monitoring by the market risk unit
within the specified limits, and ensuring that such positions are being closed on a daily basis.
Furthermore, the Bank does not keep any investment portfolios, in international stocks, precious
metals or any other investment instruments related to financial derivatives. The Bank’s investments
are limited to public debt instruments issued by the Central Bank of Jordan and money market
instruments with fixed return,

1 — Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risks arise fromn the possibility of changes in interest rates affecting the value of
financial instruments. The Bank is exposed to interest rate risks due to the inconsistency or gap in
the various maturity terms of assets and liabilities or the re-evaluation of interest rates within a
certain time period. The Bank manages such risks by reviewing the interest rates on assets and
liabilities through the assets and liability committee in the bank.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss sensitivity is represented by the impact of the potential
assumed changes in interest rates on the Bank's profit for one year, which is calculated on the
financial assets and liabilities that have a variable interest rate as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.
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Sensitivity Sensitivity

Increase in of netinterest  of net Owner's
31 December 2016: interest rate income (loss) equity
Currency Percentage JD JD
US Dollar 1% (66,180) {66,180)
Euro 1% 8,574 8,574
Other 1% (584) (584)
31 December 2015:
Currency
US Dollar 1% (3,409) (3,409)
Euro 1% 20,127 20,127
Other 1% (470) (470)

In the event of an opposite change in the indicator, the effect will be equal to the change above,
however, with an opposite sign.

2 — Currency risk

Foreign currency risks are the risks associated with changes in the value of financial instruments
as a result of fluctuations in the foreign currency rates. The Bank sets the limits for the financial
positions on every currency within the Bank investment policy. Foreign currency positions are
subject to daily monitoring by the market risks unit and the treasury department are provided with
all outstanding currency positions on a daily basis for the purposes of monitoring and hedging
against currency rates changes ensuring that timely decisions are being made.

The Bank adopts a prudent policy with respect to trading and maintaining open positions in foreign
currencies by not holding any long or short positions within its portfolios. Accordingly, the
associated risks are considered low with no negative effects resulting from the change in exchange
rates or the change in the value of financial instruments due to fluctuations in foreign currency
rates, taking into consideration that the Jordanian Dinar is the primary currency of the Bank.

The following table illustrates the effect of a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate of

the Jordanian Dinar against foreign currencies on the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with
all other effective variables unchanged:
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Change in

exchange Effect on Effect on
31 December 2016 - rate Profits and Losses  owner's equity
Currency (Percentage) JD JD
Euro 5% (1,054) (1,054}
Others 5% (1.841) (1,841)
Change in
exchange Effect on Effect on
31 December 2015 - rate Profits and Losses  owner's equity
Currency (Percentage) JD JD
Euro 5% (274) (274)
Others 5% (1,853) (1,953)

In the event of an opposite change in the indicator, the effect will be equal to the change above,
however, with an opposite sign.

3 — Stocks price risk:
Risks of changes in stock prices result from the change in the fair value of stock investments.

The following table indicates the sensitivity of the accumulated change in the fair value due to the
reasonable possible changes in stock prices, with all other effective variables unchanged.

Change Effect on Effect on
Inindicator  Profits and Losses owner's equity
31 December 2016 (Percentage) JD JD
Amman Stock Exchange Index (5%) - (16,308)
31 December 2015
Amman Stock Exchange Index (5%) - (6,313)

In the event of an opposite change in the indicator, the effect will be equal to the change above,
however, with an opposite sign.
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Concentration in foreign currencies risk:

lteam { Currancy
2016

Asseats

Cash and balances at central bank
Bafances at banks and financial insfitutions
Direct credit facilities, net

Financial asset at amortized cost

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Banks and financial institution deposits
Customers' deposits

Margin accounts

Loans and borrowings

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net concentration in consolidaled statement
of financial position
Contingent liabilities off consolidated statement

of financial position

2015

Assots

Cash and balances at central bank
Balances at banks and financial institutions
Direct credit facilities, net

Financial asset at amoriized cost

Other assels
Total Assets

Liabllities

Banks and financial institution deposits
Customers’ deposils

Margin accounts

Loans and borrowings

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net concentration in consolidated statement
of financial position

Contingent liabilities off consolidaled statement
of financial position

Sterling Japanese

US Dollar Euro Pound Yen Other Total
JO JD JO JO JD Jo

7,058,784 4,149,193 36,459 - - 11,244,436
65,570,442 23,132,579 1,032,297 1,275 6,271,290 96,037,883
26,040,832 23,108 - - 8 26,063,948
12,640,258 - - - - 12,640,258
634,462 12,438 14 - 1,165 648,079
111,944,778 27,317,318 1,068,770 31,275 §6,272463 146,634,604
16,310,388 16,325,424 - - 6,220,215 38,856,027
82,100,537 7,223,204 1,004,059 25233 7,064 90,360,097
5,742 850 365,892 39,080 - - 6,147 822
- 3,244,719 - - - 3,244,719
1,385,287 136,988 25,626 = 14,417 1,562,318
105,539,062 27,296,227 1,068,765 25233 6,241,696 140,170,983
6,405,716 21,001 5 6,042 30,767 6,463,621
41,195,434 2,545,896 34,294 - 56,691 43,832,315
6,094,025 2,066,909 16,470 - 1,181 8,178,585
31,531,265 14,254,818 1,057,302 207,488 6,638,616 53,689,489
29,616,012 42,034 3 7,584,475 5 37,242,529
11,796,222 - - - - 11,796,222
387,940 8,041 - - 4,353 400,334
79425464 16,371,802 1,073,775 7,791,963 6,644,155 111,307,159
12,058,582 5,059,011 - - 6,448,679 23,566,272
62,653,133 6,511,452 1,064,144 7,783,554 157,220 78,069,503
3,475,467 391,103 15 - - 3,866,585
- 4,357 041 - - - 4,357,041
1,004,750 47,717 9,508 400 7.304 1,069,679
70,001,032 16,366,324 1,073,667 7783954 6,613,203 110,929,080
333,532 5,478 108 8,009 30,952 378,079
46,418,703 5,379,468 49942 - 75566 51,923,679
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risks is represented by the Bank's lack of ability in providing the necessary funding
required to meet its liabilities when they come due. To avoid such risks, the management
diversifies its sources of funding by managing its assets and liabilities through matching their
maturity/due dates and maintaining a sufficient balances of cash, cash equivalents, and available
for trade securities. In addition, the process of liquidity control and management involves the
analysis of the maturity dates of assets and liabilities in a continuous and integrated manner.

Diversification of Funding Sources

The Bank's Management diversifies the funding sources by concentrating on medium and long
terms sources through issuing certificates of deposit at competitive interest rates covering all
sectors.

Follow up on the maturity term analysis of assets and liabilities
The Bank examines the liquidity of the terms of its assets and liabilities taking into consideration
the gaps that may affect liquidity.

Geographic and Sector Distribution

The Bank pays attention to the diversification in distributing its assets and liabilities on various
sectors and geographic areas while harmonizing between corporate and individual client sectors
leading to a diversification in the sources of funding and variation of entitlements.

Cash reserves with the banking supervisory authority
The Bank maintains a compulsory cash reserve with the banking supervisory authorities
amounting to JD 63,938,828.

Compliance with the liquidity ratios set by the banking supervisory authorities

The Bank periodically reviews the liquidity ratios and their conformity to the current and effective
regulations.
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Second: contingent liabilities:

Less than
1 year 1—-5years Total
JD JD JD

2016 -

Letters of credit and acceptances 16,323,702 - 16,323,702
Unutilized facilities 75,932,702 - 75,832,702
Letters of guarantee 58,059,964 3,436,598 61,496,562
Total 150,316,368 3,436,598 153,752,966
2015 -

Letters of credit and acceptances 18,861,704 - 18,861,704
Unutilized facilities 48,200,414 - 48,200,414
Letters of guarantee 57,502,476 5,616,200 63,118,676
Total 124,564,594 5,616,200 130,180,794

Operational risks Management:
Operational risks are represented in the risk of loss due to insufficiency or failure of internal
operations work force and regulations which may result from internal or external events.

The Bank works towards managing and reducing operational risks, accordingly, it has established
a specialized and independent department concerned in the management of operational risks.
Additionally, it has adopted Société Générale Group Policies and procedures regarding this issue.

In this regard, the Bank has enhanced the institutional frameworks that govern the management
of operational risks through updating and developing policies and adopting procedures necessary
to manage such risks. The department of operational risks manages, identities, measures,
controls, and monitors the risk through qualitative and quantitative methods including:

- Documentation of all internal operational risk loss to which the Bank is exposed to and the
remedial procedures to ensure no reoccurrence thereof through using a special information
recording system (Internal Operaticnal Risk Loss Data Collection).

- Risk Control Self Assessment which involves the assessment of potential losses generated
from the Bank's various activities, which enables us to assess the level of the Bank’s exposure
to operational loss.

- Key risk indicators which indicates the most important operational risks sources to which the
Bank may be exposed in order to manage them effectively.
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Non-compliance Risks:
These are the risks of organizational or legal penalties or loss of reputation which the Bank may
face due to failure of complying with laws and regulations issued by the regulatory bodies.

The Bank pays special attention to the regulations of the banking supervisory authorities, as it has
established a special department and a complete set of written policies and procedures to avoid
exposure to such risks.

As part of the Bank's strategy, it has recently applied automated solutions to prevent money
laundering and avoid implication in such activities which may impair the Bank's reputation

Strategic Risks:

These are the risks of existing or possible negative effect on the shareholders' rights due to action
decisions and improper execution, or lack of awareness and reaction to internal or external
changes.

Internal control environment:

The Board of Directors ensures the existence of control systems and that the internal control is
adequate and effective, and follows up on an ongoing basis, where the relevant departments for
internal control (continuous, periodic) submit security and accuracy periodic reports to the Audit
Committee and Board of Directors to make sure that the Bank's management practice the
appropriate control.

Internal contro! consists of:

1. Continuous internal control: a collection of works carried out on an ongoing basis in order to
ensure the security and accuracy of the transactions at the operational level, which includes
all departments of the Bank.

The continuous internal control is the most important elements approved in the Bank,
because it is the first level of internal control, in addition to being one of the requirements of
regulatory bodies locally and internationally which is considered the main pillar to reduce the
operational risk through constant monitoring of daily business, also lead to the development
and quality of the banking services provided to customers.

2. Periodic internal control: assessing the Bank's commitment to the regulations and
procedures as well as evaluating the effectiveness of the systems of control and oversight of
the Bank, consisting of such control of both the Internal Audit (the second level of internal
control), audit of Societe Generale De Banque - Lebanon and Societe Generale group (the
third level of internal control).
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38 SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes the Bank is organised into four major business segments that are
measured according to the reports used by the main decision maker at the bank:

Consumer banking: Principally handling individual customers' deposits and providing consumer
type loans, overdratts, credit cards facilities, funds transfer facilities, and other banking services;

Small and medium enterprises (SMEs): Principally handling deposits, providing services related
to credit facilities, and other banking services to the small and medium enterprises.

Corporate banking: Principally handling loans, other credit facilities, deposit, current accounts,
and other banking services to corporate and institutional customers;

Treasury: Principally providing money market, trading and treasury services, as well as the
management of the Bank's funding operations.

The following are information on the Bank's segments distrusted according to activities:

Total revenues
Impairment loss on

direct credit facilities
Segmental results
Unallocated expenses
Profit before tax

Income tax

Net prafit

Other information
Total Assets
Total Liabilities

Capital expenditure
Depraciation and
amortization

Tolal
Consumer SMEs Corporale Treasury Others 2016 2015
JO JD JD JD JD JD JD

11,232,213 8,774,597 10,061,526 26,926,917 7,531,906 64,527,159 57,481,360
(676,657) (365,097) 393,035 - - (648,719) (1,329,623)
966,897 988,163 2,444,708 26,173,852  (1,935,204) 28,638,216 26,403,265
- o - o - (12,078,491) (11,003,591}
- - - - - 16,569,725 15,399,674
- - - - el (5,651,690) (5,390,448)
10,908,035 10,009,226
167,202,371 78,379,443 205,264,580 686,247,188 166,082,033 1,303,175615 1,210,141,450
257,769,298 198,793,337 219,167,950 44,392,864 449,611,353 1,169,734,802 1,082,554,422
1,051,561 1,897,249
1,222,193 1,152,020
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Geographical Information

The following table shows the distribution of the Bank's operating income, total assets and capital
expenditure by geographical segment:

Inside Jordan Outside Jordan Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
JD JD Jo JD JD Jo
Total revenues 63,611,209 56,979,097 915,950 502,263 64,527,159 57,481,360
Total assets 1,207,137,731 1,156,451,961 96,037,884 53,689,489 1,303,175,615 1,210,141,450
Capital expenditure 1,051,561 1,897,249 - - 1,051,561 1,897,249

39) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Bank aims to manage capital to achieve the following objectives:

- Compliance with the Central Bank of Jordan on capital requirements.
- Bank's ability to continue as going concern.
- Maintaining strong capital to support the growth and development of the Bank.

The capital adequacy is monitored by the Bank's management on monthly basis and also
providing the Central Bank with information regarding the capital adequacy quarterly.

As instructed by the Central Bank of Jordan, the minimum capital adequacy ratio is equal to 12%.
Banks are classified into 5 categories where the best has a rate to 14% or more.

The Bank manages the capital structure and makes the necessary adjustments in light of changes
in working conditions; the Bank has not added any amendments to the goals, policies and
procedures related to the structuring of capital during the current year.

Regulator requirements regarding capital adequacy

Bank should comply with the CBJ regulation no. 39/2008 concerning capital adequacy according
to Basel Il, up to end of June 2016. The CBJ regulation concerning the application of Basel Ill
were issued in October 2016 and banks should comply with the mentioned regulation starting 30
September 2016.

The following table shows the components of capital, value and total risk-weighted assets and
capital adequacy ratio that is measured according to the regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan
and based on the instructions of Basel Il Committee,



Primary capital items ( Tier 1)
Paid in capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Retained earnings

Fair value reserve - net

Less:

Deferred tax assets
intangible assets - net
Proposed cash dividends

Net Primary capital (Tier 1)

Supplementary capital ( Tier 2)
General banking risk reserve

Net Supplementary capital (Tier 2 )

Total regulatory capital

Total risk weighted assets
Capital adequacy (%)
Primary capital {%)
Financial leverage (%)
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2016

JD

100,000,000
10,411,064
100,000
18,814,955
(53,000)

(933,253)
(1,355,256)
(7,000,000)

119,984,510

4,167,794

4,167,794

124,152,304

549,141,128
22.61%
21.85%

8.25%



The following table shows the calculation of the amount that the Bank considers capital in addition
to capital adequacy ratio that is measured according to the regulations of the Central Bank of

Jordan on their instructions of Basel Il commitment in this regards:

Primary capital items
Paid in capital
Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve
Retained earnings

Less:

Deferred tax assets

Past years revaluation reserve
Seized assets for over 4 years
Proposed cash dividends
Intangible assets

Total Primary capital

Supplementary capital items
General banking risk reserve
Fair value reserve

Total Supplementary capital
Total regulatory capital

Total risk weighted assets
Capital adequacy (%)
Primary capital (%)

2015

JD

100,000,000
8,746,028
100,000
15,354,418

(1,328,995)
(21,974)
(5,000,000)
(935,559)

116,913,918

3,385,332
563

3,385,895

120,299,813

453,102,687
26.55%
25.8%
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{40) MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are

expected to be recovered or settled:

2016

Assets
Cash and balances at central bank
Balances at banks and financial institutions
Deposits at banks and financial institutions
Direct credit facilities, net
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Financial assets at amortized cost
Pledged financial assets
Financial assets at value through profit or loss
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Banks and financial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits

Margin accounts

Loans and borrowings

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net

Within More than
1 year 1 year Total
JD JD JD
142,927,198 - 142,927,198
96,822 688 - 96,822,688
15,215,196 - 15,215,196
116,162,488 452 052,159 568,214,647
478,779 . 478,779
32,453,788 282,035,870 314,489,658
403,000 126,000,000 126,403,000
22,346,823 - 22,346,823
1,355,256 - 1,355,256
1,358,687 - 1,368,687
13,563,683 - 13,563,683
443,087,586 860,088,029 1,303,175,615
44 392 864 - 44 392, 864
999,506,666 1,520,545 1,001,027,211
85,902,498 2,266,382 88,168,880
8,388,301 8,918,822 17,307,123
73,064 - 73,064
5,238,192 - 5,235,192
264,311 - 264,311
13,266,157 - 13,266,157
1,157,029,053 12,705,749 1,169,734,802
(713,941,467) 847,382,280 133,440,813
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2015

Assets
Cash and balances at central bank
Balances at banks and financial institutions
Deposits at banks and financial institutions
Direct credit facilities, net
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Financial assets at amortized cost
Pledged financial assets
Financial assets at value through profit or loss
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Banks and financial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits

Margin accounts

Loans and borrowings

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net

Within More than
1 year 1 year Total
JD JD JD

336,311,558 - 336,311,558
36,230,356 - 36,230,356
17,459,133 - 17,459,133
115,469,830 316,124,204 431,594,034
250,335 ) 250,335
63,981,792 144,304,607 208,286,399
846,000 111,000,000 111,846,000
11,398,262 20,453,800 31,852,062
22,944 481 - 22,944,481
935,559 - 935,559
1,328,995 - 1,328,995
11,102,538 - 11,102,538
618,258,839 591,882,611 1,210,141,450
29,055,047 - 29,055,047
916,195,163 502,068 916,697,231
99,257,541 340,828 99,598,369
15,455,509 5,400,000 20,855,509
218,786 - 218,786
4,299,315 - 4,299,315
167,657 - 167,557
11,662,608 - 11,662,608
1,076,311,526 6,242,896 1,082,554,422
(458,052,687) 585,639,715 127,587,028
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41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

The total outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities are as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
Letters of credit 10,506,800 13,264,819
Acceptances 5,816,902 5,596,885
Letter of guarantee: 61,496,562 63,118,676
Payments 5,635,878 6,163,188
Performance 24,238,909 22,230,056
Other 31,621,775 34,725,432
Unutilized facilities 75,832,702 48,200,414
Total 163,752,966 130,180,794

42 LAWSUITS

Lawsuits raised against the Bank in its ordinary course of business amounted to JD 232,010 as at
31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: JD 294,688). The Bank has provided for those lawsuits
an amount of JD 73,064.

The Bank's management and its legal advisor believe that no additional liability is required in
excess of the amount provided for.

43 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

During July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” with all the three phases. IFRS
9 sets out the requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and
some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 38 "Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. The Bank has implemented the first phase of IFRS 9 as issued
during 2009. The date of initial implementation of the first phase of IFRS 9 was 1 January 2011.
The new version of IFRS 9 will be implemented at the mandatory date on 1 January 2018, which
will have an impact on the recognition and measurement of financia! assets.
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IFRS 16 Leases
During January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 “Leases” which sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.

IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for
those two types of leases differently.

IFRS 16 introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make iease payments.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early
application is permitted.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising from contracts with customers.
It applies to all entities that enter into contracts to provide goods or services to their customers,
unless the contracts are in the scope of other IFRSs, such as IAS 17 Leases. IFRS 15
supersedes |IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfers of
Assets from Customers; and SIC-31 Revenue—Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, and
early adoption is permitted.

IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative - Amendments to IAS 7

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows are part of the IASB's Disclosure Initiative
and require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. On initial application of the amendment, entities are not required to
provide comparative information for preceding periods. The amendments will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early application permitted. The
application of amendments will result in adding limited amount of disclosure information.
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IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions -
Amendments to IFRS 2

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment that address three main areas:
the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features
for withholding tax obligations; and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.
Entities may apply the amendments prospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

In September 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 4 to address issues arising from the
different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the upcoming new insurance contracts standard (IFRS 17).
The amendments introduce two alternative options for entities issuing contracts within the scope
of IFRS 4, a temporary exemption from implementing IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning before
1 January 2021 at latest and an overlay approach that allows an entity applying IFRS 9 to
reclassify between profit or loss and other comprehensive income an amount that results in the
profit or loss at the end of the reporting period for the designated financial assets being the same
as if an entity had applied 1AS 39 to these designated financial assets.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

Entities should apply the amendments prospectively and effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018. Early application of the amendments is permitted and must be disclosed.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the
date on which an entity initially recognises the nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective or
prospective basis. The new interpretation will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. Early application of interpretation is permitted and must be disclosed.
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